
Note: For information related to the selection of instructional materials, see EFA.

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the District provides a wide range of library materials for students and faculty that support student achievement and present varying levels of difficulty, diversity of appeal, and a variety of points of view. This policy also provides standards for collection development and the selection and evaluation of library materials.

**Collection
Development Policy**

In this policy, "library materials" **IS DEFINED BY LAW AND** may include printed and electronic library acquisitions, including online catalogs, and other ancillary or supplementary materials maintained in a campus library. **[SEE EFB(LEGAL)]**

The library collection development standards shall apply to all library materials available for use or display, including material contained in school libraries, classroom libraries, and online catalogs, **LIBRARY MOBILE APPLICATIONS USED IN THE DISTRICT, AND ANY OTHER LIBRARY CATALOG A STUDENT MAY ACCESS.**

In developing library collections, the District shall consider the age groups, grade levels, and access to library material by all students on a campus.

Responsibility

The District shall ensure librarians, professional library staff, and other designated professional staff **ARE trained OR RECEIVE INFORMATION ON THE PROPER COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.** ~~on the proper collection development standards select and acquire library materials in accordance with state law and rules, this collection development policy, and administrative procedures.~~

The Superintendent shall develop administrative procedures to ensure that library collections comply with applicable law, **LIBRARY STANDARDS** and the District's collection development purpose and goals.

Collection
Development Goals

In addition to the requirements in state law and rules, the District's library collections shall:

1. Present multiple viewpoints related to controversial issues [see EMB regarding instruction about controversial issues].
2. Provide a wide range of background information that will enable students to make intelligent decisions in their daily lives.

INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES
LIBRARY MATERIALS

EFB
(LOCAL)

3. Include accurate and authentic factual content from authoritative sources.
4. Have a high degree of potential user appeal and interest.
5. Offer a global perspective that promotes equity of access, including print and nonprint materials such as electronic and multimedia, to meet the needs of individual learners.
6. Represent diverse viewpoints and **CULTURAL GROUPS OF THE STATE AND THEIR CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE, THE NATION, AND THE WORLD**, ~~cultures appropriate to each campus~~ to ensure the collection embodies the ~~unique~~ background of **ALL STUDENTS**. ~~its student population.~~

~~Selection and
Evaluation of
Materials~~
**RECOMMENDATI
ON AND
PROCUREMENT
OF MATERIALS**

Library materials shall be **RECOMMENDED AND PROCURED** ~~se-
lected and acquired~~ in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission and the District standards and priorities expressed in this policy.

LIBRARIANS AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL STAFF SHALL DEVELOP RECOMMENDATIONS TO BE PRESENTED TO THE BOARD. THE LIBRARIANS AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL STAFF SHALL ENSURE THAT THE MATERIALS: ~~When select-
ing, acquiring, and evaluating library materials, librarians and other
professional staff shall ensure that the materials:~~

1. Enrich and support the TEKS and the state and local curriculum, taking into consideration students' varied interests, maturity levels, abilities, and learning styles.
2. Foster growth in factual knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic values, and societal standards.
3. Encourage the enjoyment of reading, foster high-level thinking skills, support personal learning, and encourage discussion based on rational analysis.
4. Represent ethnic, religious, and cultural groups of the state and their contributions to the state, the nation, and the world.

The Superintendent shall ensure that administrative procedures regarding the **DEVELOPMENT OF RECOMMENDATIONS** ~~selection~~ of library materials consider at least two of the following factors:

1. Recommendations from students, parents or guardians, teachers, and District **RESIDENTS** ~~community members~~.
2. Consultation with District teachers and library staff.
3. Consultation with library staff from other districts.
4. Extensive review of the library material.

INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES
LIBRARY MATERIALS

EFB
(LOCAL)

5. Context of the library material, including overall fit within the existing collection and support of District curriculum.
6. Reviews of the library material from sources such as professional journals in library science, recognized professional education or content journals with book reviews, national and state award recognition lists, library science field experts, and highly acclaimed author and literacy expert recommendations.
7. Coverage of topics, authors, series, or genres that fill gaps in the school library collection.

THE BOARD SHALL CONSIDER THE LIST OF LIBRARY MATERIALS THAT HAVE BEEN DONATED OR PROPOSED BY THE ADMINISTRATION FOR PROCUREMENT. EACH BOARD MEMBER MAY PROPOSE CHANGES BEFORE THE BOARD TAKES ACTION ON THE LIST OF DONATED OR PROPOSED LIBRARY MATERIALS.

THE BOARD SHALL EITHER APPROVE OR REJECT THE LIBRARY MATERIALS THAT HAVE BEEN DONATED OR PROPOSED FOR PROCUREMENT.

**DONATED AND
PROPOSED
PROCUREMENT
LIST**

AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE BOARD'S VOTE TO ACCEPT DONATED LIBRARY MATERIALS OR APPROVE PROCUREMENT OF LIBRARY MATERIALS, THE SUPERINTENDENT SHALL MAKE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC THE LIST OF LIBRARY MATERIALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW.

Access Plan

The District shall allow efficient parental access to the District's library and any available online catalogs.

Online catalogs shall be publicly available. The District shall publish information about library material titles, including how and where material can be accessed.

Each campus shall communicate the following to parents and guardians:

- Access to policies relating to school libraries and library materials;
- Consistent access to library materials and resources; and
- Opportunities for students, parents and guardians, educators, and community members to provide feedback on library materials and services.

Parental
Involvement

Parents and guardians are the primary decision makers regarding their student's access to library material. In general, a student is afforded the opportunity to self-select library materials as part of literacy development and the library program. District staff may assist a

INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES
LIBRARY MATERIALS

EFB
(LOCAL)

student in selecting library material; however, the ultimate determination of appropriateness remains with the student and parent or guardian. Parents and guardians are encouraged to communicate with the campus librarian and their child’s teacher about special considerations regarding library materials self-selected by their student.

In accordance with state law and administrative procedures, parents or guardians may **SUBMIT TO THE PRINCIPAL OR A STAFF MEMBER DESIGNATED BY THE PRINCIPAL A LIST OF LIBRARY MATERIALS THAT THE PARENT’S OR GUARDIAN’S CHILD SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED TO CHECK OUT OR ACCESS FOR USE OUTSIDE OF THE SCHOOL LIBRARY. THE SUPERINTENDENT SHALL DEVELOP PROCEDURES THAT PERMIT A PARENT OR GUARDIAN TO SUBMIT THE REQUEST IN AT LEAST ONE OF THE METHODS PERMITTED BY LAW.**

THE PARENT OR GUARDIAN MAY select alternative library materials for their **CHILD.** ~~student.~~ [For information on parental rights regarding instructional materials and other instructional resources, see EFA(LEGAL).]

The District shall focus on maximizing transparency with parents while meeting student needs and providing enrichment opportunities with library materials. Parental involvement in library acquisition, maintenance, and campus activities is encouraged.

*Access
Procedures*

School Library

A parent or guardian who wishes to access a school’s library shall first submit a request to the principal. The principal or a staff member designated by the principal shall work with the parent or guardian to determine a time to access the library that will not interfere with the delivery of instruction or disrupt student use of library services.

LIBRARY

~~Online~~ Catalog

A parent or guardian who wishes to access ~~THE an online~~ **catalog OF LIBRARY MATERIALS FOR ANY SCHOOL IN THE DISTRICT** shall submit a written request to the **SCHOOL’S** principal. The principal or a staff member designated by the principal shall respond to the request in accordance with administrative procedures.

Protection from
Inappropriate
Material

IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW AND GUIDANCE FROM THE TEXAS STATE LIBRARY AND ARCHIVES COMMISSION, library materials shall not include “harmful material”; ~~as defined by Penal Code 43.24(a)(2); “obscene” material as defined by Penal Code 43.21(a)(1);~~ any library material that is pervasively vulgar or educationally unsuitable; **ANY LIBRARY MATERIAL CONTAINING INDECENT OR PROFANE CONTENT; ANY LIBRARY MATERIAL THAT REFERS A PERSON TO A WEBSITE, INCLUDING BY**

USE OF A LINK OR QR CODE, CONTAINING CONTENT LEGALLY PROHIBITED UNDER LAW ~~as referenced in Board of Education v. Pico,~~ or any other material legally prohibited from inclusion in a public school library. [See EFB(LEGAL)]

Obscene material is not protected by the First Amendment to the United States Constitution.

Library materials shall comply with the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA), including technology protection measures. [See CQ]

CHALLENGE
~~Reconsideration of~~
Library Material

A District employee or a parent or guardian of a District student, **OR DISTRICT RESIDENT** may **CHALLENGE** ~~request the reconsideration of a~~ library material maintained in the District's library program.

Guiding Principles

The following principles shall guide the review of a **CHALLENGE** ~~request to reconsider a~~ **OF** library material:

1. An individual may **CHALLENGE** ~~raise an objection to a~~ library material used in the District's library program, despite the fact that the professional staff **AND THE BOARD** ~~selecting the materials were qualified to make the selection,~~ followed the proper procedure, and adhered to the objectives and criteria for **RECOMMENDING AND PROCURING** library materials set out in this policy.
2. ~~A parent's or guardian's ability to exercise control over instruction and instructional resources, including library materials, extends only to his or her own child as set forth in Education Code Chapter 26.~~
2. Access to a challenged material shall ~~not~~ be restricted during the **CHALLENGE** ~~reconsideration process,~~ ~~except the District may deny access to a student if requested by the student's parent or guardian.~~

In addition to compliance with state law and this policy, a criterion for the final decision on challenged library materials is the appropriateness of the material for its intended use. No challenged library material shall be removed solely because of the ideas expressed in the library material or the personal background of the library material's author or the personal background of the characters in the material.

Informal
CHALLENGE
~~Reconsideration~~

When the District or a campus receives an objection to the appropriateness of a library material, the appropriate librarian or adminis-

trator shall try to resolve the matter informally. The librarian or administrator shall explain the selection process and discuss the intended purpose for the library material.

The librarian or administrator shall offer a concerned parent or guardian an alternative library material to be used by the child in place of the material and, if requested, shall restrict the child's access to the material objected to by the parent or guardian.

If the individual wishes to make a formal challenge, the administrator shall make available to the individual a copy of this policy and a **THE** form to request a formal **CHALLENGE reconsideration** of the library material.

Formal
CHALLENGE
Request for
Reconsideration

The District shall make **THE TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY** a form to **CHALLENGE request reconsideration** of library material available in **ON** the District's **WEBSITE administrative office**.

If **A DISTRICT** an employee, or a parent or guardian of a District student, **OR A DISTRICT RESIDENT** wishes to **CHALLENGE request reconsideration** of a library material, they shall follow the procedures to complete and submit the **CHALLENGE request for reconsideration** form.

After a **CHALLENGE request for reconsideration** form is submitted, the form shall be provided to the Superintendent. Copies of the form shall be provided to the school librarian, the Board, and any other staff designated in administrative procedures.

CHALLENGE
Reconsideration
Committee

~~For purposes of this policy, "days" shall mean District business days, unless otherwise noted.~~

~~The principal shall appoint a reconsideration committee and notify committee members within 10 days of receiving the request for reconsideration form.~~

THE SUPERINTENDENT SHALL APPOINT A CHALLENGE COMMITTEE AND NOTIFY COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES.

The **CHALLENGE reconsideration** committee shall include the librarian and at least one member of the instructional staff who is familiar with the material's content. Other members of the committee may include District-level staff, secondary-level students, parents or guardians, and any other appropriate individuals.

~~Within 10 days committee the of appointment of the~~ **THE** District shall provide members of the committee the relevant materials to review **IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEADLINES ESTAB-**

LISHED IN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW. ~~If additional time is required to obtain and distribute the materials for review, all members of the committee shall be informed that a reasonable extension of time is needed.~~

ANY MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE MUST COMPLY WITH THE MEETING REQUIREMENTS UNDER EDUCATION CODE 33.025(G) AND (H), INCLUDING REQUIRED NOTICES, MEETING MINUTES, AUDIO OR VIDEO RECORDINGS OF THE MEETING TO THE DISTRICT.

All members of the committee shall review the challenged library material in its entirety and determine whether the material conforms to this policy and whether the material will continue to be available in the library. The committee shall prepare a written report of its findings.

~~Absent extenuating circumstances, the written report shall be provided to the administration within 60 days of the District providing the material to the committee members. In calculating timelines under this policy, the day the committee is provided the materials is "day zero." The following business day is "day one."~~

~~Extensions of time due to extenuating circumstances shall take into consideration the time necessary to convene the committee members, the amount of material being reviewed, and any other pending reconsideration requests being handled by the committee.~~

~~An extension of any deadline shall be promptly communicated to the individual who submitted the request for reconsideration.~~

The Superintendent, the school librarian, the individual submitting the **CHALLENGE** ~~request for reconsideration~~, and any other appropriate **STAFF** ~~administrators~~ shall receive a copy of the committee's report.

Appeal

An individual who submitted a **CHALLENGE** ~~request for reconsideration~~ may appeal the decision **TO THE BOARD. THE INDIVIDUAL MUST PROVIDE THE NOTICE OF APPEAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES.** ~~of the reconsideration committee in accordance with appropriate complaint policies, starting at the level immediately preceding Board consideration of a complaint. [See DCBA and FNG]~~

THE BOARD SHALL HEAR THE APPEAL AND RENDER A DECISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TIMELINES ESTABLISHED IN LAW.

WHEN CONSIDERING THE APPEAL, THE BOARD SHALL CONSIDER THE FACTORS IN EDUCATION CODE 33.027 (F).

THE BOARD SHALL CONSIDER APPEALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TIMELINES SET OUT IN LAW.

Frequency of Review

After a library material has been **CHALLENGED AND THE BOARD DETERMINES NOT TO REMOVE THE LIBRARY MATERIAL FROM A SCHOOL LIBRARY CATALOG**, ~~reviewed through the reconsideration process~~, it **MAY** ~~shall~~ not be **CHALLENGED** ~~reviewed~~ again **BEFORE THE SECOND ANNIVERSARY OF THE BOARD'S FINAL DECISION NOT TO REMOVE THE MATERIAL**. ~~within two calendar years of the reconsideration committee's final decision.~~

REMOVAL OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

IF A CHALLENGE TO A LIBRARY MATERIAL RESULTS IN THE REMOVAL OF THE LIBRARY MATERIAL FROM THE SCHOOL LIBRARY CATALOG, EACH TEACHER ASSIGNED AS THE CLASSROOM TEACHER AT THE GRADE LEVEL FOR WHICH THE LIBRARY MATERIAL WAS REMOVED SHALL BE NOTIFIED AND INSTRUCTED TO REMOVE ANY COPY OF THE LIBRARY MATERIAL FROM THE TEACHER'S CLASSROOM LIBRARY, IF APPLICABLE.

Maintenance of Library Materials

In accordance with state guidelines and District administrative procedures, collections shall be evaluated and updated regularly based on the collections' age, relevance, diversity, and variety. The Superintendent shall ensure administrative procedures are established for regular maintenance of the library collection on each campus. Standard maintenance procedures for any library collection include repair, replacement, and removal of materials as necessary. Regular maintenance shall also include scheduled inventories of the collection. Disposal of any District-owned library materials shall be in accordance with District policy and procedures. [See CI]

Gifts and Donations

The District shall accept gifts and donations of library materials with the understanding that the use and disposition of the materials and monies will be in accordance with District policy and the selection criteria noted above. [See CDC]

Policy Review

This policy shall be reviewed at least every three years and revised as necessary.